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Citibank (Hong Kong} Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Directors’ Report

The directors submit herewith their annual report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal place of business

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company”) is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of business at Citi Tower, One
Bay East, 83 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are the provision of retail banking, credit cards,
consumer credit related financial services and wealth management solutions.

The Company is a licensed bank under the Banking Ordinance and a Registered Institution
registered with the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Company also received the Insurance Agency
License under the Insurance Ordinance from the Insurance Authority.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

Dividend

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$1,116,258,000 on 21 December 2023 (2022:
HK$ 1,362,847,500) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2022: HK$ Nil) in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Directors

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Richard Ho Yan Ki

Angel Ng Yin Yee
Raymond Yung Hin Man
Lawrence Li Koon Hong
Douglas Li

Josephine Lee Kwai Chong
Stephen Po Wai Kwong
Vicky Kong Pik Tung
Aveline Wong San Pau Len



Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Directors (continued)

In accordance with clause 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all of the present
directors retire from the Board and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in force and was in
force throughout this year.

Directors’ interest in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ interests in shares

The Company's ultimate holding company, Citigroup Inc., operates stock option and stock
award plans enabling eligible employees, including directors of the Company, to acquire
shares of the common stock in Citigroup Inc. Certain directors of the Company in office
during the year have been granted awards over shares of the common stock in Citigroup Inc.
pursuant to the above stock award plan. During the year, the following directors acquired
shares of the common stock in Citigroup Inc. pursuant to the above stock award plan:

Angel Ng Yin Yee
Josephine Lee Kwai Chong
Lawrence Li Koon Hong
Aveline Wong San Pau Len

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The Banking (Disclosure) Rules set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which
authorised institutions must make in respect of the financial performance, financial position
and capital adequacy. The Company’s financial statements and the unaudited
supplementary information on pages 87 to 106 for the financial year ended 31 December
2023 comply fully with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting or by way of a written resolution passed by the member of the
Company in lieu of the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Ul
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company™)
set out on pages 7 to 86, which comprise the statement of financial position as at

31 December 2023, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this reponrt.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professicnal judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Kers

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 APR 2024
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2023

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar)

Interest income calculated using effective
interest method
Other interest income

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net trading income
Other operating income

Operating income

Operating expenses

Operating income before impairment losses
Impairment losses

Operating profit
Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

Note

3(a)
3(b)

e}

10(a)

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
7,947,798 4,803,966
3,589,193 1,047,850
11,536,991 5,851,816
(8,015,545) (2,751,349)
3,521,446 3,100,467
3,048,615 2,937,845
(57,297) (51,612)
2,991,318 2,886,233
658,964 607,153
24,963 51,963
683,927 659,116
7,196,691 6,645,816
(5,559,053) (5,220,814)
1,637,638 1,425,002
(224,247) (143,722)
1,413,391 1,281,280
(2,034) -
1,411,357 1,281,280
(49,151) (164,611)
1,362,208 1,116,669
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Cifibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial stafements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar)

Note 2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Other comprehensive income for the year
Item that will not be classified to profit or loss:
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 2,635 1,131
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
- Changes in Financial assets measured at fair
vajue through other comprehensive income 26 210,852 (276,566)
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 213,487 (275,435)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,575,693 841,234

The notes on pages 15 to 86 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position at 31 December 2023

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar)

Assets

Cash and balances with banks, central banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions

Loans and advances

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS
Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Trading financial liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Note

12

13
14(a)

15

16
17
18
19
10(c)
10(d)
20

21
22
23
10(c)
24

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
18,368,951 18,189,823
18,208,957 22,437 963
151,677,975 159,465,952
76,071,387 84.462.918
55,820,376 49,390,806
1,953,000 3.898.775
474,151 570.760
6.828 17.513
102,302 i

59 222 94,243
2794005 3,304.932
325 537 244 341,833,685
42,616,486 55,860,990
252.241.005 255.133.639
60 541 142 667

; 65.081

5 389,325 5 862 133
300,307,357 317 065,410
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Statement of financial position at 31 December 2023

(continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong doflar)

Equity

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

Oplie et

\[mkr ’(-oy\,‘] Jm!:l«-«:.t. .

R

Note

25
26

Directors

Cilibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

The notes on pages 15 to 86 form part of these financial statements.
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2023 2022

$000 $’000

7,348,440 7,348,440

17,881,447 17,419,835

25,229,887 24,768,275

325,537,244 341,833,685
25 APR 2024
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2023

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar)

Balance at 1 January 2022
Changes in equity for 2022:

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Equity-settled share-based
transactions
Dividend declared and paid in

respect of the current year

Balance at 31 December 2022
and 1 January 2023

Changes in equity for 2023:

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Equity-settled share-based
transactions

Dividend declared and paid in
respect of the current year

Balance at 31 December 2023

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Share Capital Fair value Retained

Nole capital reserves reserve profits Total
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000

7,348,440 (11,052) (20,888) 17,973259 25,289,759

- - 1,116,669 1,116,669
- - (276,566) 1,131 (275,435)

- - (276,566) 1,117,800 841,234

26(a) - 130 - - 130
11 - - - (1,362,848) (1,362,848)
7,348,440 (10,922) (297,454) 17,728,211 24.768,275

- - - 1,362,208 1,362,206

- - 210,852 2635 213,487

- - 210,852 1,364,841 1,575,693

26(a) 2177 - - 2,177
11 - - - (1,116,258) (1,116,258)
7,348,440 (8,745) (86,602) 17,976,794 25,229,887

The notes on pages 15 to 86 form part of these financial statements.

11
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Citihank {(Hong Kong) Lirnited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2023
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar)

Note 2023 2022
$'000 $°000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 1,411,357 1,281,280
Adjustments for:
Interest received on financial assets measured
at amortised cost (228,480) (136,284)
Interest received on financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (1,437,528) (509,686)
Dividends received (1,471) (1,709)
Depreciation 206,741 221,625
Amortisation of intangible assets 10,685 16,704
Impairment losses 224 247 143,722
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 4,874 1,501
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 2,034 -
Write-off of construction in progress 7,831 3,037
200,290 1,020,190
Increase in operating assets
Cash and balances with banks, central banks
and other financial institutions with original
maturity beyond three months (3,388,226) (894,232)
Loans and advances 7,563,730 3,574,179
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity beyond three
months 4,401,869 (7,718,289)
Other assets 510,837 (269,542)
9,088,210 (5,307,884)

12




Citibank (Hong Kong) Limifed
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar)

e e e ey ey s e—

2023 2022
$'000 $'000

(Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities
Trading financial liabilities (82,126) 105,814
Deposits from customers (2,892,634) 19,406,512
Deposits from banks and other financial

institutions (13,410,391) 9,503,231
Other liabilities {(290,697) 1,292,564

(16,675,848) 30,308,121

Cash (used in)/generated from operations (7,387,348) 26,020,427
Income tax paid
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (223,550) -
- Overseas tax refund 109 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating

activities (7,610,789) 26,020,427
Investing activities
Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss 553,394 55,103,224
Interest received on financial assets measured

at amortised cost 228,480 136,284
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1,945,775 (500)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets

measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income with original maturity

beyond three months 49,390,806 44 065,706
Payment for purchase of financial assets

measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income with original maturity

beyond three months (55,568,496) (49,722,181)
Payment for purchase of property, plant and

equipment (119,997) (377,510)
Interest received on financial assets measured

at fair value through other comprehensive

income 1,437,528 509,686
Dividends received 1,471 1,709
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing

activities (2,131,039) 49,716,418

13
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Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar)

Financing activities

Dividends paid to equity shareholder of the
Company

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Cash flows from operating activities include:

interest received
Interest paid

Note

11

27

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022

$'000 $000
(1,116,258) (1,362,848)
(9,413) (9,744)
(172,760) (186,110)
(1,298,431) (1,558,702)
(11,040,259) 74,178,143
92,684,068 18,505,925
81,643,809 92,684,068
11,453,401 5,665,455
(7,854,577) (2,143,638)

The notes on pages 15 to 86 form part of these financial statements.

14
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Material accounting policies

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of business af Citi Tower, One
Bay East, 83 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (*"HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (*HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Material accounting policies adopted
by the Company are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Company for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- obligations under share-based incentive plans (see note 1(h){iv)); and

- financial instruments classified as trading, measured at fair value through profit or loss
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (see note 1(d)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

15
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Cilibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Material accounting policies (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 35.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include premium paid on exclusivity right, acquired computer software
licences and capitalised development costs of computer software programmes. Expenditure
on development of computer software programmes is capitalised if the programmes are
technologically and commercially feasible and the Company has the intention and sufficient
resources to complete the development. The expenditure capitalised includes the direct
labour, costs of materials, and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(f)).

Amortisation of customer relationships is charged to the profit or loss based on the pattern in
which the future economic benefits on the related deposits are likely to accrue to the
Company. Amortisation of other intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- acquired computer software licences 1-3years
- capitalised development costs of computer software programme 5-10years
- exclusivity right 4 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

16
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Initial recognition

The Company initially recognises loans and advances, deposits on the date on which they
are originated. All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of
financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Afinancial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not
measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue.

Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL").

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the foliowing conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are SPPI,

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.
In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise,

17



Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Material accounting policies (continued)
Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets:

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business mode! (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed,;

- how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is
not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company's

stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither helid to coilect
contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to seli financial
assets.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money
and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding d uring a particular

period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as profit margin.

18



Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Material accounting policies (continued)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPP1, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company
considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse loans); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest raies).

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
period after the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. \When
(and only when) the Company changes its business mode! for managing financial assets, it
reclassifies all affected financial assets in accordance with the new business model. The
reclassification should be applied prospectively from the ‘reclassification date’, which is
defined as, ‘the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that results in reclassifying financial assets’. Accordingly, any previously recognised gains,
losses or interest will not be restated.

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the amortised cost measurement category and into
the FVTPL or FVOCI measurement category, its fair value is measured at the reclassification
date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortised cost of the
financial asset and fair value is recognised in profit or loss (if reclassification as FVTPL
measurement category) or is recognised in other comprehensive income (if reclassification
as FVOCI measurement category).

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the FVOCI| measurement category and into the
amortised cost measurement category, the financial asset is reclassified at its fair vaiue at
the reclassification date. However, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the
financial asset at the reclassification date. As a result, the financial asset is measured at the
reclassification date as if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the FVOCI measurement category and into the
FVTPL measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value.
The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification
date.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

If a financial asset is reclassified out of the FVTPL measurement category and into the
amortised cost measurement category, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount.

If an entity reclassifies a financial asset out of the FVTPL measurement category and into the
FVOCI measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value
and subsequent changes in fair value will be recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market prices at the
statement of financial position date without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.
Financial assets are priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at current
asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted market price on a recognised
stock exchange or a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial
instruments, or if the market for it is not active, the fair value of the instrument is estimated
using valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of prices which could be obtained
in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management’s best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate at the statement of
financial position date applicable for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where
other pricing models are used, inputs are based on market data at the statement of financial
position date.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Company uses the first-in, first-out method to determine realised gains and losses to be
recognised in profit or loss on derecognition.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives may be embedded in another contractual arrangement (a host contract). The
Company accounts for an embedded derivative separately from the host contract when:

- the host contract is not an asset in the scope of HKFRS 9:
- the host contract is not itself carried at FVTPL;

- the terms of the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative if they were
contained in a separate contract; and

- the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract.

Separated embedded derivatives are measured at fair value, with all changes in fair vaiue
recognised in profit or loss unless they form part of a qualifying cash flow or net investment
hedging relationship. Separated embedded derivatives are presented in the statement of
financial position together with the host contract.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (‘ECL”) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date: and

- other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it
hits either criterion list below:;

- accounts are 30 days past due,

- accounts with 0-29 days past due tagged as a troubled debt restructuring and with month
on book less than 6 months,

- behaviour score drops to marginal risk level,
- accounts that have been over 30 days past due in last 6 months,
- bankruptey notification received, or

- deceased notification.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resuit from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:
- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of

all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in

accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive);
and

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date; as the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI, are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:

- abreach of contract such as a default or past due event:

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would
not consider otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving
contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-
impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.
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Material accounting policies {continued)
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying
amount of the assets;

- loan commitments: generally, as a provision:

- debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value.
However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve. The
change of the loss allowance is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Wirite-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This
is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘impairment losses on financial
instruments’ in the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as foliows:

- Buildings held for own use carried at cost 50 years
- Plant, machinery and other assets 3 -10 years
- Installations 3 -10 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost
or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Material accounting policies {continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and
- intangible assets.

if any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, balances with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are
recognised in operating expenses. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current
period. When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of
the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expense/(income) for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting
period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The discount rate is the yield at the
statement of financial position date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset)). The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Company can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits. :

25



[

(iv)

(i

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Material accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company participates in a number of Citigroup Inc. (“Citigroup”) share-based incentive
plans under which Citigroup grants shares to the Company’'s employees. Pursuant to a
separate Stock Plans Affiliate Participation Agreement (“SPAPA”), the Company reimburses
Citigroup for the fair value of the share-based incentive awards delivered to the Company’s
employees under these plans. The Company accounts for these plans as equity-settled
plans, with separate accounting for its associated abligations to make payments to Citigroup.
The Company recognises the fair value of the awards at grant date as compensation
expense over the vesting period with a corresponding credit in equity as a capital contribution
from Citigroup. The Company'’s liability to Citigroup under the SPAPA is remeasured
annually until settlement date and any changes in value are recognised in equity.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in
the profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using taxrates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustmentto tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of
existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for the
Company.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each statement of financial
position date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Company has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Company as revenue when it arises from the provision of services
in the ordinary course of the Company's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Company is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Further details of the Company's revenue and other income recognition policies are as
follows:

Interest income

Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset: or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired assets, the Company estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not ECL. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using
estimated future cash flows including ECL.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points
paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs
include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial
asset or financial liability.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets,
adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calcuiation of interest income and expense

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and
expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when
the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. The effective interest
rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments
to reflect movements in market rates of interest.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit
risk of the asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, see note 1(d)(vii).

Membership fee income

Annual card membership fees are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over
twelve months which represent the membership period.

Commission income

Commission income is recognised on a time-apportioned basis on the assets under
management outstanding and at the rate applicable. For the card business, commission
income is recognised in the financial statements on the date when the sales transaction is
recorded, at which time the income is deemed to be earned.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

Other Interest income

Other Interest income from financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss is
the coupon payment received from debt securities.

Leased assefts

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease component(s), the Company
has elected not to separate non-lease components and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Company, are primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Company enters into a lease in respect of a low-vaiue asset, the Company decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The iease payments associated
with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted fo their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(f)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the Company will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Company presents right-of-use assets in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and lease
liabilities in ‘Other liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong doilars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments are included in gains less losses from trading securities or
financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss. All other exchange
differences relating to monetary items are presented as gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies in the profit or loss.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Company if that
person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) bas significant influence over the Company; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company’s parent.

(b}  Anentity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i}  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of em ployees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
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Material accounting policies (continued)
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity oris a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management services to the Company or the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the

current accounting period of the Company.

None of the amendments have had a material effect on how the Company’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Company has not applied any amendment or interpretation that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period.

Interest income and interest expense

Interest income calculated using effective interest method

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
interest income on loans to customers 4,697,707 3,133,529
Interest income on placements with banks and other
financial institutions 1,584,083 1,024,467
Interest income on financial assets measured at
amortised cost 228,480 136,284
Interest income on financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
- Listed 128,013 67,428
- Unlisted 1,309,515 442 258
Interest income on financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss 7,947,798 4,803,966

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets of $2,014,000

(2022: $3,611,000).
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(b) Other interest income

Interest income on financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss

- Listed

- Unlisted

(c) Interest expense

Interest expense on deposits from customers

Interest expense on deposits from banks and other
financial institutions

Interest on lease liabilities

Negative interest on financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Interest expense

33

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial staternents for the yeer ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
333,375 33,004
3,255,818 1,014,846
3,589,193 1,047,850
2023 2022
$'000 $°000
5,544,580 1,620,086
2,461,552 1,118,990
9,413 9,744

- 2,529
8,015,545 2,751,349
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Fee and commission income

2023 2022

$'000 $'000

Fee and commission from retail banking 1,246,596 1,262,555
Fee and commission from cards business 783,818 733,653
Service fee from group companies 1,018,201 941,637
3,048,615 2,937,845

The above amount entirely represents fee and commission income, other than fees included
in determining the effective interest rate, arising from financial assets or financial liabilities

that are neither held for trading nor measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Net trading income

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Net gain from foreign exchange 646,555 618,342

Net gain/(loss) from financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss 12,409 {11,189)
658,964 607,153

Other operating income

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Dividend income from unlisted investment 1,471 1,709
Others 23,492 50,254
24,963 51,963

34



[ N T e e |

7

(a)

(h)

(c)

Operating expenses

Staff costs

Salaries and other benefits

Amount recognised in respect of defined benefit plan,
contributions to defined contribution plan and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

Amount recognised in respect of equity-settied share-
based payments

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation charge (note 18)

- Owned property, plant and equipment

- Right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19)

Other operating expenses

Premises and equipment expenses
Marketing expenses

Intercompany expenses

Auditor's remuneration

Others

35

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
$'000 $°000
1,489,603 1,295,614
86,534 61,037
4,874 1,501
1,581,011 1,358,152
46,462 41,365
160,279 180,260
10,685 18,704
217,426 238,329
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
59,494 86,275
1,155,779 1,205,138
2,315,090 2,119,058
4,292 3,348
225,961 210,514
3,760,616 3,624,333
5,559,053 5,220,814
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Directors’ emoluments

Citibank {(Hong Kong) Limited
Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Directors' fees

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses

Share-based payments

Retirement scheme contributions

Impairment losses

Cash and balances with banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Loans and advances with banks

Loans and advances with customers

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other assets

36

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
1,820 1,820

12,661 10,244
15,715 11,883
4,789 5,714
646 533
35,631 30,194
2023 2022
$:000 $'000
878 2,204
(143) 2,840
(428) 1,841

220,973 136,618
3,223 801

(256) (582)
224,247 143,722




Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited

- Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
¢ 10 Taxation
(a) Taxation in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
" represents:
2023 2022
- $°000 $'000
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
- Provision for the year 68,854 147,514
(Over)/Under-provision in respect of prior years (13,587) 8,633
- 55,267 157,147
Current tax - Overseas (109) -
B Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (6,007) 7,464
] 49,151 164,611
] The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the

estimated assessable profits for the year.

] (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

2023 2022

] $000 $'000
" Profit before taxation 1,411,357 1,281,280

i Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at

the rates applicable to Hong Kong Profits Tax 232,874 211,411

j Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 159 187

Tax effect of non-taxable income (175,135) (64,908)
(Over)/Under-provision in respect of prior years (13,587) 9,633

i- Others 4,840 8,288
Actual tax expense 49 151 164,611
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

10 Taxation (continued)

fc) Income taxation in the statement of financial position represents:

2023 2022

$'000 $'000
Tax payable/(recoverable) brought forward
from prior years 65,981 (91,166)
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 68,854 147,514
{Over)/Under-provision in respect of prior years {13,587) 9,633
Profits Tax paid (223,550) -
Tax (recoverable)/payable (102,302) 65,981

(d) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as follows:

Financial
Timing assels
Depreciation difference measured at
in excess on share- fair value
of related based through other
Impairment  depreciation payment  comprehensive
aflowance alfowances  transactions income Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Deferred tax arising from:
At 1 January 2023 (44,046) (1,813} 364 {48,748) (94,243)
Credited to reserves - - - 41,028 41,028
Charged/(Credited) to the profit or
loss (7,999} 4,306 (383) (1,931) (6,007)
At 31 December 2023 (52,045) 2,493 (19) {9.651) (59,222)
At 1 January 2022 (43,461) (10,400) 297 6,666 (46,898)
Credited to reserves - - - {54,809) (54,809)
Charged/{Credited) to the profit or
loss (585) 8,687 67 (605) 7,464
At 31 December 2022 (44,046) (1,813) 364 (48,748) (94,243)

11 Dividends

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the financial year

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Interim dividend declared and paid 1,116,258 1,362,848
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Cifibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023

Cash and balances with banks, central banks and other financial institutions

2023 2022
$'000 $°000
Cash in hand 511,937 642,687
Balances with banks and other authorised institutions 1,411,386 2,365,513
Balances with central bank 1,196,183 2,032,036
Balances with other financial institutions 103,059 84,836
Placement with banks and other financial institutions
maturing within one month 15,151,449 13,069,136
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (5,063) {4,185)
- Stage 2 - -
- Stage 3 - -
18,368,951 18,189,823
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
2023 2022
$000 $'000
Placements with banks and authorised institutions 288,260 -
Placements with other financial institutions 17,925,716 22,443 125
Less: Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 (5,019) (5,162)
- Stage 2 - -
- Stage 3 - -
18,208,957 22,437,963
Maturing
- between one month and one year 18,208,957 22,437,963

The above amounts are also reflected in note 33(a) where they relate to transactions with

related parties in the ordinary course of its banking business.
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14 Loans and advances

(a) Loans and advances less impairment

Gross loans and advances to customers
Less: Impairment aliowances

- Stage 1

- Stage 2

- Stage 3

Net loans and advances to customers
Gross loans and advances to banks
lLess: Impairment allowances

- Stage 1

- Stage 2

- Stage 3

Net loans and advances to banks

Total

40

Citibank (Hong Kong} Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
$'000 $°000
120,900,515 120,619,278
(174,834) (135,707)
(120,407) (111,104)
(33,096) (26,824)
120,572,178 120,345,643
31,114,370 39,129,310
(8,573) (9,001)
31,105,797 39,120,309
151,677,975 159,465,952
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14 Loans and advances (continued)

categories

Loans and advances to customers for
use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and financial

- Property investment

- Wholesale and retail trade

~ Manufacturing

- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of other residential properties
- Credit card advances

- Others

Netting adjustment on account of foreign
currency margin products

Total loans and advances to customers for
use in Hong Kong

Loans and advances to customers for use outside
Hong Kong

Total

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(b) Analysis of amount of loans and advances to customers classified into industry

2023 2022

$'000 $'000
2,023,971 2,123,831

. 185

; 81
86,260,814 83,193,857
14,042,507 13,021,363
18.771.100 22 506,934
121,098,392 120,846,251
(203,127) (230,237)
120,895,265 120,616,014
5,250 3,264
120,900,515 120,619,278

The above economic sector analysis is based on the categories and definitions used by the

Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA®).

After taking into account the transfer of risk, there were no exposures to a single country
outside Hong Kong exceeding 10% of the aggregate gross amount of loans and advances to

customers as at the above respective reporting dates.
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14 Loans and advances (continued)

(c)

Impaired loans and advances to customers

Citibank (Hong Kong) Lirnited

Financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
% of % of
loans and foans and
advances fo advances to
customers customers
$'000 $'000
Overdue loans and advances
to customers 41,438 0.04% 35,201 0.03%
Rescheduled loans and
advances to customers 13,160 0.01% 14,515 0.01%
Gross impaired loans and
advances to customers 54,598 0.05% 49716 0.04%
The gross impaired loans and advances to customers disclosed above correspond to the
total loans and advances to customers.
15 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
2023 2022
$'000 $°000
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Treasury bills {(including exchange fund notes) 75,877,246 83,864,002
Equity securities 15,590 537,667
75,892 836 84,401,669
Financial assets issued by:
- Sovereigns 75,877,246 83,864,002
- Corporates 15,590 537,667
75,892,836 84,401,669
Trading financial assets
Derivative financial instruments (note 28(b)) 178,551 61,249
76,071,387 84,462,918
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Analysed by place of listing:

- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Exchange fund notes
Financial assets issued by:

- Sovereigns

- listed in Hong Kong
- Unlisted

17 Financial assets measured at amortised cost

] Analysed by place of listing:

Debt securities

Financial assets issued by:
- Corporates

Analysed by place of listing:
- Unlisted

43

Cifibank (Hong Kong) Limited
- Financial statements for the year ended 37 December 2023

77 15 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

2023 2022
$'000 $°000
5,059,374 2,660,478
70,833,462 81,741,191
75,892,836 84,401,669

16 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
55,820,376 49,390,806
55,820,376 49,390,806
8,253,148 7,324,599
47,567,228 42,066,207
55,820,376 49,390,806
2023 2022
$'000 $°000
1,953,000 3,808,775
1,953,000 3,898,775
1,953,000 3,898,775
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Cifibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Right-of-use assets
The Company presented right-of-use assets in “Property, plant and equipment”, the same

line item as it presents underlying assets of the same nature that it owns. The carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets are as below.

2023
Automated
Teller Back
Branches Machines Office Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $000
Balance at 1 January 434,749 21,577 13,060 469,386
Balance at 31 December 313,569 25,025 8,926 347,520
2022
Automated
Teller Back
Branches Machines Office Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 297,037 15,170 20,878 333,085
Balance at 31 December 434,749 21,577 13,060 469,386
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Intangible assets

Cost:

At 1 January 2023
Addition

Write-off

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2023
Amortisation for the year (note 7(b))

At 31 December 2023

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2023

Cost:

At 1 January 2022

Addition

Write-off

At 31 December 2022
Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2022

Amortisation for the year (note 7(b))
Write-off

At 31 December 2022

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2022

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial sfatements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Capitalised Exclusivity
software right Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
249,270 107,000 356,270
249,270 107,000 356,270
248,424 90,333 338,757
685 10,000 10,685
249,109 100,333 349,442
161 6,667 6,828

Capitalised Exclusivity
software right Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
249,270 107,000 356,270
249,270 107,000 356,270
241,720 80,333 322,053
6,704 10,000 16,704
248,424 90,333 338,757
846 16,667 17,613
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20 Other assets

Accrued interest

Defined benefits asset

Prepaid expenses

Other accounts and receivables
Less: Impairment allowances

Deposits and balances from banks and authorised
institutions

Deposits and balances from other financial institutions

Overdrafts

22 Deposits from customers

Demand deposits and current accounts
Savings deposits
Time, call and notice deposits

23 Trading financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (note 28(b))

48
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Citibank {Hong Kong) Limited
- Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

The above balances do not contain amounts overdue for more than 12 months.

21 Deposits and balances from banks and other financial institutions

2023 2022

$'000 $°000
827,219 743,629
9,564 6,026
52,542 55,284
1,908,300 2,501,779
(1,530) (1,786)
2,794,095 3,304,932
2023 2022

$'000 $'000
14,058,354 10,363,008
28,004,880 45,110,817
553,252 387,365
42,616,486 55,860,990

The above amounts are also reflected in note 33(a) where they relate to transactions with
related parties in the ordinary course of its banking business.

2023 2022

$'000 $'000
33,686,646 45,718,392
70,383,166 90,381,150
148,171,193 119,034,097
252,241,005 255,133,639
2023 2022

$'000 $'000
60,541 142,667




24 Other liabilities

Citibank {(Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
. $'000 $'000
Accrued interest 882,842 721,874
- Reserve for expenses 1,215,628 1,202,853
Payable for equity-settled share-based payment 11,685 10,908
Accounts payable 2,819,276 3,332,257
- Lease liabilities 459,894 594,241
5,389,325 5,862,133
25 Share capital
7 2023
A ordinary share B ordinary share Total
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully
paid:
At 1 January and 31 December 71,834,230 7,183,423 1,650,170 165,017 73,484,400 7,348,440
2022
A ordinary share B ordinary share Total
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount Amount
$'000 $'000 $'000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully
paid:
At 1 January and 31 December 71,834,230 7,183,423 1,650,170 165,017 73,484,400 7,348,440

of the Company do not have a par value.

49

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares

The voting rights of A ordinary shares and B ordinary shares are attached to the shares as
prescribed under article 80 of the Company’s Articles of Association. The special voting right
of B ordinary shares is to ensure that the total number of votes attaching to B ordinary shares
should not be less than 80% of the total number of votes attached to all issued shares of the
Company at any general meeting of the Company.



S e = e & .

| S S

26 Reserves

At 1 January 2023

Changes in reserves for
2023:

Share-based payment
transactions, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividend declared in respect
of the current year

At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022

Changes in reserves for
2022:

Share-based payment
transactions, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividend declared in respect
of the current year

At 31 December 2022

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limifed

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Capital Fair value Retained
reserves reserve profits Total
$'000 $°000 $000 $’000
(10,922) (297,454) 17,728,211 17,419,835
2,177 - - 2,177
- 210,852 1,364,841 1,675,693
- - (1,116,258)  (1,116,258)
(8,745) (86,602) 17,976,794 17,881,447
Capital Fair value Retained
reserves reserve profits Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(11,052) (20,888) 17,973,259 17,941,319
130 - - 130
- (276,566) 1,117,800 841,234
- - (1,362,848)  (1,362,848)
(10,922) (297,454) 17,728,211 17,419,835
50



Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

26 Reserves (continued)

IA--J—

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves
Capital reserves

- The capital reserves comprise the subsequent change in fair value of the share awards
granted to employees of the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 1(h)(iv). The Company recognises the fair value of the
awards at grant date as compensation expense over the vesting period with a corresponding
credit in equity as a capital contribution from Citigroup. The Company’s liability to Citigroup
under the SPAPA is remeasured annually until settlement date and any changes in value are
recognised in equity.

Fair value reserve

This reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of FVOCI debt securities
measured at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 held at the end of the reporting period (note 1(d)).

_—
A2

Regulatory reserve

To satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes, the Company has earmarked a regulatory
reserve directly from retained profits. As of 31 December, 2023, the effect of this
requirement is to reduce the amount of reserves which can be distributed to equity
shareholders by $516,153,000 (2022: 562,881,000)

..\
\2)

Distributability of reserves

A Level 3 reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of Level 3 securities
held until the securities are derecognised and the cumulative gains are considered
distributable. The derecognition policy for financial instruments is set out in note 1(d). The
Level 3 reserve sources from both fair value reserves and retained profits. At 31 December
2023, the Level 3 reserve balance was $10,147,000 (2022: $503,839,000). This amount is
deducted from the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution.

vowy  oumy  wwew e ey e et

At 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $17,355,147,000 (2022: 16,353,115,000).

'

(d} The directors did not propose any final dividend (2022: $Nil) after the year end.
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27 Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement

Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
other financial institutions with original maturity within
three months

Placements with banks and other financial institutions
with original maturity within three months

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss with original maturity within three months

Less: Overdrafts

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement

(b) Reconciliation with the statement of financial position

Cash and balances of banks, central banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss

- Treasury bills

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- Exchange fund notes

Amounts shown in the statement of financial position

Less: Amounts with an original maturity of beyond
three months

Less: Overdrafts

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement

52

Citibank (Hong Kong) Lirnited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
12,193,934 15,403,032
410,679 237,816
69,592,448 77,430,585
82,197,061 93,071,433
(553,252) (387,365)
81,643,809 92,684,068
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
18,368,951 18,189,823
18,208,957 22.437,963
75,877,246 83,864,002
55,820,376 49,390,806
168,275,530 173,882,594
(86,078,469) (80,811,161)
(553,252) (387,365)
81,643,809 02,684,068




(a)

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial stafements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Derivatives

Derivatives are used for managing the Company's own exposures to market risk as part of its
asset and liability management process and their sale to customers as part of the Company’s
business activities. The principal derivative instruments used by the Company are foreign
exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter derivatives.

Notional amount of derivatives
Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the value of one or more

underlying assets or indices. The notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume
of outstanding transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.

2023 2022
$'000 $'000

Currency derivatives
Forwards and futures 16,490,976 16,812,285
Options purchased 3,797,746 2,053,360
Options written 3,797,746 2,053,360
24,086,468 20,919,005

Currency forwards and futures are acquired or incurred principally for hedging purposes.
Currency options are customer driven transactions and hedging transactions. The Company
has elected not to use hedge accounting.

Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives

2023 2022
Credif risk Credit risk
Fair value weighted Fair value weighted
Assels Liabilities amount Assels Liabilities amotnt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Currency derivatives 178,551 60,541 76,791 61,2489 142 667 61,811
{Note 15) {Note 23) {Note 15} {Note 23)

The credit equivalent amounts are assessed in accordance with the Banking (Capital} Rules
and depend on the status of the counterparty and maturity characteristics of the instrument.

The fair values and credit risk weighted amounts do not take into account any bilateral

netting arrangements entered into during the year and accordingly these amounts are shown
on a gross basis.
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Remaining life of derivatives

Citibank {(Hong Kong} Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

The following table provides an analysis of the notional amounts of derivatives of the
Company by relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining periods to settlement at the

statement of financial position date.

Currency derivatives

Notional amounts with remaining life of

24,086,468 24,086,468

29 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contractual or notional amounts

Forward forward deposits placed

Other commitments

- with an original maturity of not more than one year
- with an original maturity of more than one year

- which are unconditionally cancellable

Total

Credit risk weighted amounts

2022
Over
1 year to
Total 5 years
$'000 $’000
20,919,005 20,919,005 -
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
62 70
131,721 2,425,044
226,010 327,553
85,281,348 84,781,143
85,639,141 87,533,810
61,175 380,367

Contingent liabilities and commitments are forward forward deposits placed as well as credit-
related instruments. The risk involved is similar to the credit risk involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same credit
application, portfolio maintenance and collateral requirements as for customers applying for
loans. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully
drawn upon and the client default. Since a significant portion of other commitments is
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total of contractual amounts is not

representative of future liability requirements.

The credit risk-weighted amounts are assessed in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules and depend on the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of the

instrument.
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Trust activities

The Company commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the
holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other
institutions. These assets and income arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as the Company does not control the assets.

Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Company’s exposure to and its management and
control of risks, in particular, the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments;

- credit risk: risk of loss resulting from the decline in credit quality (or downgrade risk) or
failure of a borrower, counterparty, third party or issuer to honor its financial or contractual
obligations.

- market risk: risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices and market risk comprises currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk.

- liquidity and funding risk: risk that the Company is unable to meet its payment obligations
when due, or that it is unable, on an ongoing basis, to borrow funds in the market on an
unsecured, or even secured basis at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed
commitments.

- operational risk: risk arising from matters such as non-adherence to systems and
procedures or from frauds resulting in financial or reputation loss.

The Company has established policies and procedures to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and limits continually by
means of reliable and up-to-date management and information systems. The Company
continually modifies and enhances its risk management policies and systems to reflect
changes in markets, products and best practice risk management processes. Internal Audit
also perform regular audits to ensure compliance with the policies and procedures.

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and the
Company's management of capital.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk management

This category includes credit and counterparty risks from loans and advances and
counterparty risks from trading and investing activities and also third parties to either hold,
collect, or settle the funds on behalf of the Company. The Company identifies and manages
this risk through its (a) target market definitions, (b) credit approval process, (c) post-
disbursement monitoring and (d) remedial management procedures.

Credit Risk Management is responsible for the quality and performance of credit portfolios of
the Company, through which it can pursue a long-term sustainable and profitable growth. It
manages, monitors and controls all credit risks within the Company through:

- formulating credit policies on new acquisition, portfolio management, collection and
recovery for credit portfolios;

- developing risk acceptance criteria for portfolios towards segments, sectors, industries,
usages and collateral,

- undertaking an independent review and objective assessment of credit risks;

- controlling exposures to portfolios, industries, counterparties and countries, etc. by setting
limits;

- monitoring the performance of credit portfolios, including collateral positions, and
developing effective remedial strategies;

- evaluating potentially adverse scenarios that may impact the quality and performance of
credit portfolios;

- establishing key risk indicators that assess the market situation on on-going basis; and

- providing advice and guidance to business units on various credit-related issues.

The Company's credit risk arises mainly from its consumer and treasury operations.
Consumer credit risk

The Company’s consumer credit policy, approval process and credit delegation authority are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively homogeneous, smali vaiue
transactions in each consumer loan category. Because of the nature of consumer banking,
the credit policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks with respect to different
products and types of customers. The Company has established methodologies on risk
assessment for new product launch as well as periodic review of the terms of existing
products, so as to achieve the desired customer profiles.

Credit risk for treasury transactions

The Company’s treasury activities are predominantly with group entities or with institutions

and governments with strong credit standing. As such, credit risk for the Company’s treasury
activities is not significant.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credif-related commitments and contingencies are essentially the same
as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers. These transactions, are
therefore, subject to the same credit application, portfolio maintenance and collateral
requirements as for customers applying for loans.

Master netting arrangements

The Company enters info master netting arrangements with counterparties whenever
possible. Netting agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts outstanding will be
settled on a net basis.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabifities

The following table present details of financial instruments subject to offsetting and
enforceable master neiting arrangements.

2023
Related
Gross amounts Net amounts amounts not
offsst in the presented in offset in the
statement the stafement statement
of financial of financial of financial
Gross amounts position position position Net amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Assets
Loans and advances to
customers 121,103,642 (203,127) 120,900,515 - 120,900,515
Positive fair value of derivatives 178,551 - 178,551 (18,152) 160,399
121,282,193 (203,127) 121,079,066 (18,152) 121,060,914
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 252,444 132 (203,127) 252,241,005 - 252,241,005
Negative fair value of derivatives 60,541 - 60,541 (18,152) 42 389
252,504,673 (203,127) 252,301,546 (18,152) 252,283,384
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2022
. Related
Gross amounts Nel amounts amounis not
offset in the presented in offset in the
staternent the statement statement
of financial of financial of financial
T Gross amounts position position position Net amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Assets
. Loans and advances to
customers 120,849,515 {230,237) 120,619,278 - 120,619,278
Positive fair value of derivatives 61,249 - 61,249 (40,343) 20,9086
. 120,910,764 (230,237) 120,680,527 (40,343) 120,640,184
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 255,363,876 (230,237) 255,133,639 - 255,133,639
T Negative fair value of derivatives 142,667 - 142,667 (40,343) 102,324
255,506,543 (230,237} 255,276,306 (40,343) 255,235,963

Concentration of credit risk

facilities but is concentrated in Hong Kong.

o . e e —

The Company pursues a strategy of mitigating any concentration in credit risk by diversifying
the asset portfolio. The total asset portfolio consists of a balanced mix of collateralised
products (mortgages and margin finance), as well as credit cards and unsecured credit

(i)  Maximum exposure
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date without
taking into consideration of any collateral held or other credit enhancements is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. A summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
other financial institutions 18,368,951 18,189,823
i Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18,208,957 22,437,963
Loans and advances 151,677,975 159,465,952
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
. or loss 78,071,387 84,462,918
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 55,820,376 49,390,806
R Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1,853,000 3,898,775
Other assets 2,731,989 3,243,622
Forward forward deposits placed 62 70
Loan commitments and other credit related
- commitments 85,639,079 87,533,740
410,471,776 428,623,669
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Credit quality of loans and advances

Citibank {(Hong Kong} Limited

Financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2023

The Company classifies the loans and advances in accordance with the loan classification

system required to be adopted for reporting to the HKMA.

The credit quality of loans and advances to customers can be analysed as follows:

Gross loans and advances to customers
- neither past due nor impaired

- past due but not impaired

- impaired

Of which:

Gross loans and advances to customers that are
neither past due nor impaired

- Grade 1: Pass

- Grade 2: Special mention

- Grade 3: Substandard

- Grade 4: Doubtful

2023 2022

$000 $°000
119,183,133 118,018,220
1,662,784 2,651,342
54,598 49,716
120,900,515 120,619,278
119,180,017 118,011,133
2,785 6,561

141 223

190 303
119,183,133 118,018,220

The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are past due but not impaired

as follows:

Gross loans and advances to customers that are past

due but not impaired
- Qverdue 3 months or less
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Financial risk management {continued)
The ageing analysis of rescheduled loans and advances to customers is as follows:

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances which have been
restructured or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position of the
borrower, or of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule and for
which the revised repayment terms are non-commercial to the Company. Rescheduled
loans and advances to customers are stated net of any loans and advances that have
subsequently become overdue for over 3 months and can be analysed as follows:

2023 2022

$'000 $'000

Normal 7,010 8,983
Qverdue but less than 3 months 6,150 5,532
13,160 14,515
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Citibank (Hong Kong} Limited
.l Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

=1 31 Financial risk management (continued)

(iiy Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

— counterparty limits set.

Poor's Ratings Services, is as follows:

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the Company manages
its corporate lending risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties with individual

At the statement of financial position date, the credit quality of investment in debt and equity
securities analysed by designation of an external credit assessment institution, Standard &

2023 2022
T $'000 $000
AAA 9,679,259 10,610,889
: AA -to AA+ 123,971,363 126,542,694
1 A-to A+ - -
Unrated 15,590 537,667
] (iv) Impairment allowances reconciliation
] The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the
impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers.
] 2023
Lifefime
ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
J $'000 $'000 $'000 . $'000
At 1 January 2023 135,707 111,104 26,824 273,635
J Transfer to 12-month ECL 34,015 (33,779) (236) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired (3,280) 3,666 (386) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired {1,253) {34,672) 35,925 -
- Impairment losses charged
to income statement:
Net remeasurement of loss
. allowance (79) 51,247 130,523 181,691
New financial assets
originated or purchased,
assets derecognised,
= repayments and further
lending 9,724 22,841 6,717 39,282
Amounts written off - - (235,181) (235,181)
B Recoveries of loans and
advances written off - - 68,910 68,810
At 31 December 2023 174,834 120,407 33,096 328,337
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2022
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2022 148,415 114,984 27,092 280,491
Transfer to 12-month ECL 62,607 (61,405) (1,202) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired (1,008) 1,071 {63) -
Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired (1,580) (30,808) 32,395 -
Impairment losses charged
to income statement:
Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (74,435) 78,406 117,975 121,946
New financial assets
originated or purchased,
assets derecognised,
repayments and further
lending 1,717 8,854 4,101 14,672
Amounts written off - - {237,304) (237,304)
Recoveries of loans and
advances writfen off - - 83,830 83,830
At 31 December 2022 135,707 111,104 26,824 273,635

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Company holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of
mortgages over property, other securities over assets including equities, mutual funds, fixed
income securities, cash deposits, insurance policies and guarantees. Collateral generally is
not held over loans and advances to banks, except when securities are held as part of
reverse repurchase. Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and
advances is determined by the nature of the instrument. An estimate of the fair value of
collateral and other credit enhancements held against financial assets is as follows:

Fair value of collateral and other credit enhancements
held against financial assets that are;

- neither past due nor impaired
- past due but not impaired
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$°000 $'000
206,975,398 217,404,506
2,642,996 4,257,957
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Financial risk management (continued)
Collateral

Where possible, the Company takes collateral as a secondary recourse to the borrower. The
collateral mainly includes cash, marketable securities, insurance policies and properties.

The Company has put in place policies which determine the types of collateral for credit risk
mitigation.

Whilst the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of the assets or,
in the case of off-balance sheet instruments, the amount guaranteed, committed, accepted or
endorsed, the likely exposure may be lower due to offsetting collateral, credit guarantees and
other actions taken to mitigate the Company’s exposure.

The description of collateral for each class of financial asset is set out below:

(i)  Balances and placements with banks, central banks and other financial institutions,
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Collateral is generally not sought for these assets.
(il Positive fair values for derivative financial instruments

The Company maintains collateral agreements and enters into master netting
agreements with some of the counterparties for derivative transactions. The coliateral
is marked to market on a mutually agreed period with the respective counterparties.
The impact of netting arrangements recognised for the computation of capital
adequacy ratio is shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Ruies.

(it} Loans and advances to customers, contingent liabilities and commitments

Certain advances to customers, contingent liabilities and commitments are typically
collateralised to a substantial extent. in particular, residential mortgage exposures are
generally fully secured by residential properties. The collateral is revalued periodically
ranging from daily to annually, depending on the type of collateral. In general, the
Company considers the collateral it has taken as well diversified and sufficient against
its exposures.

The extent to which credit exposures are covered by eligible collateral under the Banking
(Capital) Rules is shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
The amounts shown is a sub-set of the actual collateral arrangements entered into by the
Company as the Banking (Capital) Rules impose strict legal and operational standards
before collateral can be admitted as credit risk mitigants. As a result, certain collaterai
arrangements which do not meet its criteria will not be included. Certain collateral types
which are not permitted as credit risk mitigants for credit exposures under the Standardized
Approach are also excluded. The applicable hair-cuts towards the collateral, as stipulated in
Banking (Capital) Rules, are followed.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk management

Market risk arises on all market risk sensitive financial instruments, including securities,
foreign exchange contracts, etc. The objective of market risk management is to avoid
excessive exposure of earnings and equity to loss and to manage the Company’s exposure
to the price volatility inherent in financial instruments.

The Treasury Department manages interest rate risks within the limits approved by the
Market Risk Management and/or Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO), and
these risks are monitored and reported by an independent Reporting unit. It also reviews
and sets limits package as well as permitted product list, ensuring adherence to risk
management objectives. These are governed by the Company’s Mark to Market Policy and
Non-Trading Market Risk Management policy.

Derivative instruments are used to manage the Company's own exposures to market risk as
part of its asset and liability management process. The principal derivatives instruments
used by the Company are foreign exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-
the-counter derivatives.

Derivative instruments shall be reflected in the trading systems which feed to Risk systems.
Market Risk Reporting Unit prepares risk reports for exposure usage monitoring against the
approved limits. Reporting Unit sends the report to the business and market risk
management for limit monitoring purpose. Once there are limit excesses, it will be
communicated between the business and the Market Risk Management on the resolution
plan and timeline and trace of resolution. The models and parameters in the systems are
regularly updated and assessed as defined in the the Company’s policies.

The Company sets various positions and sensitivity limit structures. Additionally, the
Company applies quantitative techniques and simulation models to identify and assess the
potential net interest income and market value effects of these interest rate positions in
different interest rate scenarios. The primary objective of such interest rate risk management
is to limit the potential adverse effect of interest rate movements on net interest income. The
Market Risk Manager monitors interest rate risks against set limits on a daily basis. All
exceptions are reviewed and approved by the appropriate level of Market Risk Management,

Currency risk

The Company’s foreign currency positions arise from foreign exchange transactions. All
foreign currency positions are managed by the Treasury Department and Wealth
Management within limits approved by the Business Head and the Market Risk
Management, dotted notification to Risk Management Committees (‘RMC”) and ALCO.

The Company seeks to match closely its foreign currency denominated assets with
corresponding liabilities in the same currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risks primarily arising from financial instruments that
are denominated in the United States dollar ("USD”). In respect of financial instruments
denominated in other currencies, the Company ensures that the net exposure is kept to an

acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at Market rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”) pertains to the risk to the Company’s
financial condition resulting from adverse movements in interest rates that affect the
Company's capital and earnings. The Company’s principal measures of risk to economic
value of equity ("EVE") and net interest income (“NII") are defined based on the standardized
framework described in the Supervisory Policy Manual module IR-1 “Interest Rate Risk in the
Banking Book” and in accordance with the method used in the Return on Interest Rate Risk
in the Banking Book (MA(BS)12A).

Through the Treasury function, IRRBB is managed within the limits that are reviewed and
monitored by the Company's independent risk management team, Asset and Liability
Committee ("ALCQO") and the Board. The Company has an established IRRBB limit
framework for identified risk factors that clearly defines approved risk profiles and is within
the Treasury Risk Appetite Framework. In order to manage IRRBB effectively, the Company
may take hedging actions or restructure existing positions to reduce IRRBB. The Company
regularly assesses viability of these actions and other strategies, including further
strengthening its capital position, and implement such strategies when deemed prudent,
ensuring the Company operates well within established limits.

IRRBB regulatory reporting and monitoring is done on a quarterly basis. IRRBB measures,
including any hedging strategies or actions to reduce {RRBB, are presented to the ALCO and
the Board. In addition to and in accordance with global firm-specific standards, IRRBB

based on internal methodologies and assumptions is monitored on a monthiy basis. While
the Company uses intemally defined standard interest rate shocks and scenario assumptions
for internal risk reports, rate models and other assumptions that relate to interest rate risk
sensitivity are consistent between internal monitoring and regulatory reporting. These
models and assumptions are reviewed and validated on an annual basis, at the minimum,
and where applicable, are governed by an established Model Risk Management Policy.

The Company employs additional measurements of vulnerability to loss, including stress
testing based on the six standardized interest rate shocks defined by the HKMA and
internally selected scenarios that reflect plausible balance sheet and risk changes as
observed in the past as well as based on hypothetical or forward-looking assumptions.
Potential impact from these changes is considered when reviewing policy, setting limits as
well as assessing capital adequacy.

In calculating change in NII, the Company assumes that businesses and/or the Treasury
make no additional changes in balances or positioning in response to the unanticipated rate
changes. A static balance sheet is maintained throughout the 12-month forecast horizon,
remaining constant in terms of size and product mix regardless of the interest rate scenario
with maturing instruments being replaced with ones of the same original tenor and repricing
terms. No prepayment and early redemption assumptions are considered for loans and time
deposits as risk from these options have been assessed as immaterial and impact is curbed
by the penalty fee structure in place. Optionality risks in existing as well as new products are
assessed and reviewed on a regular basis, and when it is believed to be material, are
incorporated into the IRRBB measurements.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Other key assumptions incorporated by the Company with respect to the HKMA reporting
requirements are as follows:

- For cash flow profiling, the Company adopts a methodology of including commercial
margins and other spread components; and

- Major currency positions reported are determined based on the criteria defined by the
HKMA. Currencies identified as significant for the current annual reporting date af 31
December 2023 are HKD, USD, AUD and JPY. IRR Economic Vaiue Sensitivities do not
include any netting across currencies. All favorable exposures (gains) are excluded and
adverse exposures (losses) are reported.

Quantitative Disclosure

Non-maturity deposits (‘“NMD"} repricing risk is modeled according to modeled rate and
balance forecasts that incorporate assumptions on customer behavior and the impact of
pricing decisions. Both the rate and balance models, reviewed on an annual basis, at the
minimum, are determined using historical data spanning different rate cycles.

Given multi-rate sensitivity assumptions applied in the six interest rate shock scenarios, the
average repricing maturity assigned to NMDs will be different. The below table provides the
average (notional-weighted maturity) and the longest repricing maturity in parallel up interest
rate shock scenario.

(in years)

Average (notional-weighted maturity)

Longest

Repricing maturity assigned to NMDs

1.8
3.7

This table provides information on the change in economic value of equity ("EVE”} and
change in net interest income (“NII") over the next 12 months under each of the prescribed
interest rate shock scenarios in respect of the Company's interest rate exposures arising
from banking book positions. The Company’s variations in earnings based on the
standardized framework described in the Supervisory Policy Manual module IR-1 “Interest
Rate Risk in the Banking Book” and the Return on Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book
(MA(BS)12A) for the current annual reporting date at 31 December 2023, and comparative
figures versus prior year are as follows:

{in HKD million} Change in EVE Change in NIl
Period 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022 | 31 December 2023 | 31 December 2022
1 | Parallel up 591 387 -356 -358
2 | Parallel down 1,385 1,164 283 240
3 | Steepener 0 0
4 | Flattener 447 635
5 | Short rate up 317 600
6 | Short rate down 283 189
7 | Maximum 1,385 1,164 283 240
Period 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
8 | Tier 1 capital 24,638 24,088
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Financial risk management (continued)

Based on the above reported figures, the maximum EVE decline will occur in parallel down
interest rate shock scenario, which would lead to a 5.62% Maximum EVE vs Tier 1 Capital
ratio in 2023, a 0.79% increase from 4.83% reported in 2022,

(in HKD milion) Maximum EVE 1

Period 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 YoY Change
1 | Maximum 1,385 1,164

Tier 1 capital 24,638 24,088
3 | Maximum EVE vs Tier 1 Capital 5.62% 4.83%

Liquidity risk management

The Company’s liquidity risk management process is integrated into the overall liquidity and
funding process and liquidity monitoring framework of the Group. Liquidity is managed at the
Company-level, the Citibank, N.A.-level, the Country level and the level of Material Legal
Entity (“MLE").

Citigroup policy requires all MLE (which is the level at which the Company is operating at) to
maintain a strong liquidity position and ensure sufficient cash flows to meet all financial
commitment and to capitalize on opportunities for business expansion. This includes the
Company’s ability to meet deposit withdrawals either on demand or at contractual maturity, to
repay borrowings as they mature, to comply with the statutory liquidity ratio, and make new
loans and investments as opportunities arise. The Company maintains a pool of customer
deposits, which are made up of current and savings accounts and time deposits. The
customer deposits are widely diversified by type and maturity and represent a stable source
of funding.

Policies and Procedures

The Company has established an ALCO. The ALCO Charter includes the monitoring and
control of liquidity and funding. ALCO monitors trends in statement of financial position and
ensures that any concerns that might impact the stability of the customer deposits are
addressed effectively.

it is the responsibility of the Company’s management tc ensure compliance with local
regulatory requirements and limits set by ALCO. The Company'’s liquidity resources are
managed by the treasurer. Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the treasury function.
The Board is ultimately responsible for overseeing liquidity risk that the Gompany is able to
take and ensure that there is a robust liquidity management process in place.
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Financial risk management {continued)

The Company’s liquidity risk management framework requires limits to be set for prudent
liquidity management, the limits and internal targets include:

- Net intragroup balance

- Liguidity ratios

- Loan to deposit ratio

- Daily TLST

- Monthly Local TLST

- Resolution Liquidity Adequacy and Positioning ("RLAP")

All limits and internal targets are reviewed at least annually together with Horizontal Liquidity
Review Process and more frequently if required, to ensure that they remain relevant to
current market conditions and business strategy. These limits and targets are monitored and
reviewed by ALCO on a regular basis. Any limit excess will be escalated under a delegated
authority structure and reviewed by ALCO and the Board. A Contingency Funding and
Liquidity Plan (“CFLP”) playbook is in place for Hong Kong, on a total country basis, which
lays out the trigger points and actions in the event of liquidity crisis to ensure that there is an
effective response by senior management in case of such an event.

The Company's securities holdings are mainly in government securities that can be
liquidated, repurchased or used as collateral in the event of liquidity stress.

Stress Test

The Company uses multiple measures in monitoring its liquidity, including those described
below. In addition, there continues to be numerous regulatory developments relating to
future liquidity standards and requirements applicable to financial institutions such as the
Company, including certain measures discussed below.

Stress testing and scenario analyses are intended to quantify the potential impact of a
liquidity event on the statement of financial position (including on and off balance sheet),
contingent funding obligations and other liquidity exposures, and to identify viable funding
alternatives that can be utilized. These scenarios include assumptions about significant
changes in key funding sources, market triggers (such as credit ratings), potential uses of
funding and political and economic conditions in certain countries. These conditions include
standard and stress market conditions as well as firm-specific events.

A wide range of liquidity events are considered to ascertain potential mismatches between
liquidity sources and uses over a variety of time horizons by tenor buckets. Liquidity limits are
set accordingly. To monitor the liquidity of the Company, those stress tests and potential
mismatches may be calculated with varying frequencies, with several important tests
performed daily. All assumptions used in the stress scenarios must be reviewed under the
“Horizontal Liguidity Review Process”.
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Financial risk management (continued)

TLST - “Term Liquidity Stress Test” is the Company’s primary long-term internal stress
metric. The TLST scenario assumes a market and idiosyncratic backdrop against which the
Company can measure its stressed liquidity needs. The scenario describes stress conditions
across 365 days including the Company's customer/counterparty behaviour, its ability to
access funding markets as well as any mitigating actions management can take to protect
franchise. TLST is used to measure a 12-month survival, i.e. the Company must maintain
sufficient liquidity to meet ali maturing obligations within 12 months under the TLST stress
scenario. TLST is prepared and monitered daily for all currencies including HKD, CNY and
G10 currencies.

Local TLST - “Institution Specific and Local Market Scenario” represents a significant local
market disruption such as a collapse of a major local bank, or an abrupt change in the
regulatory or political environment, which will affect the liquidity available to that market. It
requires a self-sufficiency period over a 12-month period and it is performed on a monthly
basis.

Resolution Liquidity Adequacy and Positioning ("“RLAP") is a short-term internal stress metric
used to measure the short-term (30 days) survival horizon under a Severe Market Disruption
stress scenario. It is designed to ensure there are sufficient liquidity resources to withstand
outflows associated with Resolution scenario with a 30-day survival period under a severely
stress market condition. Assumptions are interally developed and referenced to US LCR
and the RLAP is produced and monitored on a daily basis.

Encumbered and unencumbered assets

An asset is defined as encumbered, from a liquidity perspective, if it has been pledged as
collateral against an existing liability, and as a result is no longer available to the Company to
secure funding, satisfy collateral needs or be sold to reduce the funding requirement. An
asset is therefore categorized as unencumbered if it has not been pledged against an
existing liability. As of 31 December 2023, High Quality Liquid Assets (“HQLA") held by the
Company are mostly unencumbered assets, except a small portion of Hong Kong exchange
fund bills which are set aside for intraday liquidity needs.

The Company maintains a sufficient cushion of HQLA which can be sold or used as collateral
to provide liquidity under stress period. The compositions of the HQLA are mainly in
government securities together with a small portion of high investment grade credit
securities. The size of the liquidity cushion was approximately HK$131 billion as of

31 December 2023,

Citibank, N.A’s credit ratings as at the end of December 2023 were A+ (S&P) and Aa3
(Moody's). Given that other Citibank entities are our only counterparties for these derivative
transactions and cash positions are held or posted as collateral according to the mark to
market of the contracts, Citibank’s credit ratings downgrade has minimal impact on the
Company’s derivative collateral requirement.
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31 Financial risk management (continued)

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

(i)  Analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities by contractual undiscounted cash flows

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the statement of financial
position date of the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the statement of financial position

date) and the earliest date the Company can be required to pay:

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Deposits from customers

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Deposits from customers

(d) Operational risk management

2023
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1yearor Over1 year
amount cash flow  on demand fo 5 years
$°000 $'000 $000 $'000
42,616,486 44,499,083 20,494,791 24,004,292
252,241,006 252,737,702 252,737,702 -
294,857,491 297,236,785 273,232,493 24,004,292
2022
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1yearor  Over1year
amount cash flow on demand to 5 years
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
55,860,990 57,591,411 30,810,722 26,780,689
255,133,639 255,547,895 255,456,325 91,570
310,994,629 313,139,306 286,267,047 26,872,259

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and systems or from external events. It includes legal risk - which is the risk of loss
(including litigation costs, settlements, regulatory fines) resulting from the failure of the bank
to comply with laws, regulations, prudent ethical standards, and contractual obligations in
any aspect of the bank's business but excludes strategic and reputation risk.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk is inherent in the Company’s business activities and is managed through an
overall framework with checks and balances that include recognized ownership of the risk by
the businesses and independent risk management oversight. The Company mitigates its
operational risk by setting up its key controls and assessments according to Citigroup’s and
the Regulators’ standards. They are also evaluated, monitored, and managed by its sound
governance structure. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) team establishes and
oversees the Operational Risk Policy, an integral part of the Enterprise Risk Management
Framework. There are standards in place for consistent risk identification, measurement,
monitoring and reporting supported by a robust governance structure comprising of the three
lines of defence (i.e. Business, Independent Risk, Independent Compliance and Internal
Audit) further augmented by enterprise control and support functions (i.e. HR and Legal).

Principles of Good Operational Risk Management:
Strong Ownership and Oversight

- Established lines of defense

- Businesses and Functions self-identify issues before Regulators and Internal Audit

- Issues are remediated on time and not reopened

- Significant events are escalated timely and consistently evaluated for lessons learned
- Govemance Committees actively oversee risk identification and control remediation

- Management implements effective controls to mitigate significant risks

- Products and services are delivered as intended

- Credible second line operational risk managers

Dynamic Framework and Tools

- Risk Appetite is clearly articulated and monitored with key indicators

- Taxonomies and scoring methodologies are intuitive and used consistently

- Managers Control Assessment (MCA) provides a dynamic residual risk picture and tool for
proactive prioritization

- End-to-end processes are assessed by management

- Material risks are identified and aligned with capital / stress projections

- Reporting is timely and clearly articulates the operational risk profile

- Technology platform that integrates all framework elements
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Citibank (Hong Kong} Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Financial risk management (continued)
Capital management

The Company's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Company actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The process of allocating capital to specific operations and activities is undertaken by senior
management.

Consistent with industry practice, the Company monitors its capital structure on the basis of
the capital adequacy ratio and there have been no material changes in the Company'’s policy
on the management of capital during the year.

The Company has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements, with capital
positions well above the minimum capital requirement set by the HKMA, throughout the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Further information on the Company's capital
positions can be found in part (a) of the unaudited supplementary information.

Fair values of financial instruments
Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as of a specific point in
time based on the characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant market
information. Where available, the most suitable measure for fair value is the quoted market
price. In the absence of organised secondary markets for most financial instruments, and in
particular for loans, deposits and unlisted derivatives, direct market prices are not available.
The fair value of such instruments was therefore calculated on the basis of well-established
valuation technigues using current market parameters. In particular, the fair vaiue is a
theoretical value applicable at a given reporting date, and hence can only be used as an
indicator of the value realisable in a future sale.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a hasis for financial reporting, by
qualified personnel independent of the area that created the model. These techniques
involve uncertainties and are significantly affected by the assumptions used and judgements
made regarding risk characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rates, estimates
of future cash flows, future expected loss experiences and other factors. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived
fair value estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated by comparison to independent
markets and, in many cases, could not be realised in an immediate sale of the instruments.
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32 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The following methods and significant assumptions have been applied in determining the fair
values of financial instruments presented in note (b) below:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(tv)

the fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts with no specific maturity is
assumed fo be the amount payable on demand at the statement of financial position
date;

the fair value of variable rate financial instruments is assumed to approximate their
carrying amounts and, in the case of loans and unquoted debt securities, does not,
therefore, reflect changes in their credit quality, as the impact of credit risk is
recognised separately by deducting the amount of the impairment allowances from
both the carrying amount and fair value;

the fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at amortised cost is estimated
by comparing market interest rates when the loans were granted with current market
rates offered on similar loans; and

the fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated by discounting future cash
flows. Future cash flows are estimated based on model estimates of the amount it
would receive or pay to terminate the contract at the statement of financial position
date taking into account current market conditions and the current creditworthiness of
the counterparties. The discount rate used is a market rate for a similar instrument at
the statement of financial position date. The fair value of an option contract is
determined by applying the binomial valuation model. Inputs are based on market
related data at the statement of financial position date.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Company's financial instruments measured
at the statement of financial position date on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted

prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which

fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs and
validated models. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available,

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs or

invalidated models.
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair level hierarchy. The Company's policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the date of event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

In general cases where external market prices of the financial assets carried at fair value are
available, these items are classified as Level 2 unless trading volume and price fransparency
are sufficient enough to meet Level 1 requirement. Items valued using internally generated
valuation techniques and models together with verifiable external parameters are classified
as Level 2 assets.

Unobservable revaluation parameters or models to arrive the marked to market value would

be determined as Level 3. In prior years, the Company will compare the internally generated
fair value result as the independent third party rating report. Any significant variances in fair

value are investigated and reassessed.

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair value measurements are
as follows;

2023 2022
Financial Financial
assets at Fair assels at Fair
Financial Value through Financial Value through
assels af Fair Other assets at Fair Other
Value through  Comprehensive Value through  Comprehensive
Profit or Loss Income Profit or Loss Income
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
At 1 January 537,667 - 538,667 -
Sales (532,974) - - -
Total gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss 10,897 - (1,000) -
Net unrealised gain or losses
recognised in other
comprehensive income - - - -
At 31 December 15,590 - 537,667 -
Total gains or losses for the year
included in the profit or loss for
assets held at the statement of
financial position date 10,897 - (1,000 -
81
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(c)

(d)

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Fair values of financial instruments {(continued)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost were not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.

Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to reasonably possible
alternatives

The fair values of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances, measured using
valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument and are not based on
observable market data. The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values of level 3
financial instruments to reasonably possible alternative assumptions due to parallel
movement of plus or minus 10% of the fair value.

Effect on other
comprehensive income

Favourable Unfavourable
$°000 $'000
2023
Assefs
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss 1,559 (1,559)
2022
Assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss 53,767 (63,767)
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(a)

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Company entered into the following material related party transactions. The
Company has policies on lending to related parties which define related parties, credit and
reporting processes, requirements and restrictions on such lending.

Transactions with group companies

During the year, the Company entered into transactions with related parties in the ordinary
course of its banking business including lending, acceptance and placement of inter-bank
deposits, correspondent banking transactions and off-balance sheet transactions. The
transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the time of each transaction.

The amount of related party transactions during the year and outstanding balances at the
end of the year are set out below:

intermediate holding

Ultimate holding company company Fellow subsidiaries
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Interest income - - 1,561,073 1,015,270 23,010 9,197
Interest expense - - (2.233,180) (1,118,939 {228,372) ()]
Fee and commission income - - 699,877 722,529 318,325 219,108
Net trading income - - - - - R
Operating expenses - - (1,.870,512) (1,763,767} {444,579) (355,291)
For the year ended 31 December - - (1,842,742) (1,144,907} (331,616) (127,037}
Placement of deposits
At 1 January - - 73,987,496 64,285,351 654,075 616,671
At 31 December - - 83,906,258 73,987,496 573,537 854,075
Acceptance of deposits
At 1 January - - 55,860,990 46,429,581 317,533 317,202
At 31 December - - 42,616,486 55,860,990 318,554 317,533
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions
At 1 January - - 2,026,281 3,459,863 - -
At 31 December - - 1,219,334 2,026,281 - -
Other assets
At 1 January - - 1,164,305 1,152,300 21,748 65,295
At 31 December - - 658,400 1,164,305 53,938 21,748
Other liabilities
At 1 January 10,908 11,264 212,348 193,630 19,906 6,479
At 31 December 11,685 10,908 311,507 212,348 49,960 19,906
83
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
33 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Key management personnel emoluments

Emoluments for key management personnel, including amounts paid to the Company's
directors as disclosed in note 8 are as follows:

2023 2022

$'000 $’000

Short-term employee benefits 64,935 53,048
Post-employment benefits 3,471 1,951
Share-based payments 6,742 7,633
75,148 62,632

(c)

Total emoluments are included in “staff costs” (see note 7(a)).

Amounts disclosed include emoluments totalling $30,937,529 (2022: $31,263,414) to certain
key management personnel were paid by group companies of the Company. The Company
did not reimburse the group companies for the service provided.

In addition to the amounts disclosed, emoluments totalling $713,869 (2022: $609,130) to
certain key management personnel who provided services to group companies of the

Company were paid by the Company. The Company did not receive reimbursement from
group companies.

Loans to directors

-

Loans to directors of the Company disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Aggregate amount of relevant loans made by the
Company outstanding at 31 December 22,603 24,078
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans made

by the Company outstanding during the year 25,436 47,148
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Financial stafernents for the year ended 31 December 2023

Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the directors consider the immediate holding company to be
Citigroup Holding {Singapore) Private Limited, which is incorporated in Singapore. This
entity does not produce financial statements available for public use. Its ultimate holding
company is considered to be Citigroup Inc., which is incorporated in the United States of
America. Consolidated financial statements are prepared for Citigroup Inc. under generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States. These financial statements are
available for public use.

Accounting estimates and judgements
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and liabilities, the Company makes
assumptions in respect of the effects of uncertain future events on those assets and liabilities
at the statement of financial position date. The Company's estimations and assumptions are
based on historical experience and expectation of future events and are reviewed
periodically.

Impairment losses

Management exercises judgment in establishing the criteria for determining the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and determining inputs
into the ECL measurement model, including the incorporation of forward-looking information.
For the details of the ECL model, please refer to note 1(d)(vii).

Bonus points reserve

The Company determines an accrual for bonus points on credit card transactions based on
certain assumptions relating to historical redemption rates of bonus points and the costs
associated with each point. There is uncertainty that these assumptions will hold true in the
future. These assumptions are reviewed periodically and are reviewed when necessary.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined
by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used
to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the department that created them to ensure that outputs reflect actual data
and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors would
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. For Insurance policies pledged as
collateral, Cash surrender vaiue provided by insurance company is used.
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Citibank (Hong Kong)} Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

36 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
new or amended standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2023 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Company.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: 1 January 2024
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (“2020
amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign 1 January 2025

exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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Citibank (Hong Kong)} Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Capital adequacy ratio

The capital adequacy ratios were calculated in accordance with the Capital Rules. In

accordance with the Capital Rules, the Company has adopted the “standardized approach”
for the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk, market risk, and operational risk.

2023 2022

Common Equity tier | Capital Ratio as at 31 December 26.01% 23.93%

Tier | Capital Ratio as at 31 December 26.01% 23.93%

Total Capital Ratio as at 31 December 26.86% 24.74%
Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio

2023 2022

Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio 0.99% 0.97%

The relevant disclosures pursuant to the Banking (Disclosure) Rules for this year can be

found in our website www._citibank.com.hk.

Capital Conservation Buffer Ratio

Under the Banking (Capital) Rules, the capital conservation buffer ratios for calculating the

Company’s buffer level are 2.5% for 2023 and 2022.

Regulatory capital disclosures can be found in our website www.citibank.com.hk, covering a

description of the main features, the full terms and conditions of the Company’s capital
instruments, a detailed breakdown of the Company’s CET1 capital, AT1 capital, Tier 2

capital, regulatory deductions and a full reconciliation between the Company’s accounting

and regulatory statement of financial position.
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Leverage ratio

2023 2022

Leverage ratio 7.38% 6.87%

The disclosure on leverage ratio is computed on the same basis as specified in a notice from
the HKMA in accordance with section 3C of the Capital Rules. The relevant disclosures
pursuant to the Banking (Disclosure) Rules can be found in our website
www.citibank.com.hk.

Segmental information

By class of business

The Company mainly provides financial services related to retail banking business.

By geographical area

No single country or geographic segment other than Hong Kong contributes 10% or more of

the Company’s assets, liabilities, profit or loss before taxation, total operating income or
contingent liabilities and commitments.
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Citibank {Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Segmental information (continued)
International claims

The country risk exposures in the tables below are prepared in according to the location and
types of the counterparties as defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
with reference to the HKMA'’s Return of International Banking Statistics. International claims
are on-balance sheet exposures to counterparties based on the location of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk.

International claims attributable to individual countries or areas not less than 10% of the
bank’s total international claims, after recognised risk transfer, are shown as follows:

2023
Non-bank private sector
Non-bank
Financial Non-financial
Banks  Official Sector institutions  private sector Total
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
Developed countries 66,617,145 70,111,040 5,622,257 1,663,938 143,914,380
- of which United States 65,823,179 60,005,188 1,993,067 450,186 128,271,620
2022
Non-bank private sector
Non-bank
Financial Non-financial
Banks  Official Sector institutions  private sector Toftal
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Developed countries 77,816,107 75,670,465 8,947,283 1,515,811 163,949,666
- of which United States 77,212,158 68,299,305 7,667,858 388,606 153,567,927
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

(d) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(i)

Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sector

Leoans and advances to customers
for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property investment

- Wholesale and retail trade

- Manufacturing

- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties

- Credit card advances

- Others

Netting adjustment on account
of foreign currency margin products

Total loans and advances to
customers for use in Hong Kong

Loans and advances to customers
for use cutside Hong Kong

Total

2023
% of loans
and advances
covered by
collateral or
other security

$'000

2,023,971

86,260,814
14,042,507

18,771,100

121,098,392

(203,127)

120,895,265

5,250

120,900,515

100%

100%

77%

2022

$'000

2,123,831
185

81

83,193,857
13,021,363

22,506,934

120,846,251

{230,237)

120,616,014

3,264

120,619,278

% of loans
and advances
covered by
collateral or
other security

100%
50%

50%

100%

77%

The above analysis has been classified according to categories and definitions used by the

HKMA.
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(ii)

Citibank {(Hong Kong) Lirnited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Further analysis on loans and advances to customers {(continued)

The amount of overdue and impaired loans and advances to customers and respective
collective impairment allowances in respect of loans and advances to industry sectors which
constitute not less than 10% of the Company’s total loans and advances to customers are
shown as follows:

2023
Overdue Impaired Advances
loans and loans and Collective Specific New written off
advances o advancesto impairment impairment impairment during
customers  customers allowances allowances allowances the year
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Individuals
- Loans for the
purchase
of other
residential
properties 10,609 10,608 2,826 - 67 -
- Credit card
advances 29,108 29,109 270,738 31,616 277,745 207,148
- Others 1,720 14,880 21,677 1,480 12,080 28,010
2022
Overdue Impaired Advances
foans and loans and Collective Specific New writter off
advances to advances to  impairment impairment  impairment during
customers  customers alfowances allowances allowances the year
$'000 $:000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Individuals
- Loans for the
purchase
of other
residential
properties 7,188 7,188 2,759 - 838 -
- Credit card
advances 25,526 25,526 206,017 25,740 196,364 198,775
- Others 2,460 18,975 38,003 1,084 24,541 38,518

Loans and advances to customers analysed by geographical area

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are classified according to the
location of the counterparties. After taking into account the transfer of risk, there were no
exposures to a single country outside Hong Kong exceeding 10% of the aggregate gross
amount of loans and advances to customers as at the above respective reporting dates.
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Citibank {Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar uniess otherwise indicated)

(e} Overdue and rescheduled assets

(i)  Overdue loans and advances tfo customers

2023 2022
% of loans and % of loans and
advances o advances to
customers customers
$'000 $'000
Loans and advances to
customers which have been
overdue for periods of:
- 8 months or less but over
3 months 34,955 0.03% 30,972 0.03%
- 1 year or less but over 6 months 6,483 0.01% 4,229 0.00%
- over 1 year - 0.00% - 0.00%
41,438 0.04% 35,201 0.03%
Current market value of collateral
held against the covered portion
of overdue loans and advances

{o customers 17,280 24,350

Covered portion of overdue loans

and advances to customers 10,608 7,201
Uncovered portion of overdue

loans and advances to

customers 30,829 28,000
41,438 35,201
Specific impairment 26,832 23,083
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(e)

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Overdue and rescheduled assets (continued)

The covered portion of overdue loans and advances to customers represents the amount of
collateral held against outstanding balances. Where collateral values are greater than gross
loans and advances, only the amount of collateral up to the gross loans and advance was
included.

The collateral held in respect of the overdue loans and advances mainly consists of
properties.

After taking into account the transfer of risk, there were no exposures to a single country
outside Hong Kong exceeding 10% of the aggregate overdue loans and advances to
customers as at the above respective reporting dates.

Rescheduled loans and advances to customers

2023 2022
% of loans and % of loans and
acvances to advances fo
customers customers
$'000 $'000
Rescheduled loans and
advances to customers 13,160 0.01% 14,515 0.01%

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances which have been
restructured or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position of the
borrower, or because of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
Rescheduled loans and advances to customers are stated net of any loans and advances
which have subsequently become overdue for over three months and which are included in
overdue loans and advances to customers in part (e)(i).
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Overdue and rescheduled assets (continued)

Impaired loans and advances to customers

2023 2022

% of loans and % of loans and

advances to advances to

customers customers

$'000 $'000

Overdue loans and advances to

customers 41,438 0.04% 35,201 0.03%

Rescheduled loans and

advances to customers 13,160 0.01% 14,515 0.01%
Impaired loans and advances to

customers 54,598 0.05% 49,716 0.04%

After taking into account the transfer of risk, there were no exposures to a single country
outside Hong Kong exceeding 10% of the aggregate impaired loans and advances to
customers as at the above respective reporting dates.

There were no advances to banks or other assets which were overdue for over three months
as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, nor were there any rescheduled advances
to banks and other financial institutions.

Repossessed assets

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Repossessed assets 1,053 -

Assets acquired in exchange for the release in full or in part of the obligations of the
borrowers due to restructuring or the inability of borrowers to repay, are recorded as “Other
assets” in the statement of financial position at the lower of net realisation value and the
carrying amount of the asset (net of any impairment allowance), until the assets are realised.
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(9)

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dolfar unless otherwise indicated)

Mainland Activities

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

The following analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-
bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures defined by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with reference to the Hong Kong Monetary

Authority Return of Mainland Activities.

Central government, central
government-owned enfities and
their subsidiaries and joint
ventures (JVs)

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
China or other entities
incorporated in Mainland China
and their subsidiaries and JVs

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland China or entities
incorporated outside Mainland
China where the credit is granted
for use in Mainland China

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered by the
reporting institution to be non-
bank Mainland China exposures

Total assets after provision
On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets

2023
On-balance Off-balance

sheet sheet Total
exposures exposures exposures
$'000 $'000 $'000
747,503 - 747,503
539 - 539
11,103 - 11,103
759,145 - 759,145

325,740,371

0.23%
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Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Mainland Activities (continued)

Central government, central
government-owned entities and
their subsidiaries and joint
veniures {JVs)

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
China or other entities
incorporated in Mainland China
and their subsidiaries and JVs

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland China or entities
incorporated outside Mainland
China where the credit is granted
for use in Mainland China

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered by the
reporting institution to be non-
bank Mainland China exposures

Total assets after provision
On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets

Cifibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

2022
On-balance Off-bafance

sheet sheet Total
exposures exposures exposures
$'000 $000 $°000
1,473,839 - 1,473,839
428 - 428
8,355 - 9,355
1,483,622 - 1,483,622

342,063,922

0.43%
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Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Additional disclosures on risk management

Capital requirement for credit risk

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

The capital requirements on each class of exposures calculated under the standardized
(credit risk) approach at the statement of financial position date can be analysed as follow:

Classes of expostires:

Sovereign

Public sector entity

Bank

Corporate

Cash items

Regulatory retail

Residential mortgage loans

Other exposure which are not past due
Past due

Total capital requirements for on-balance
sheet exposures

Classes of expostres:

Trade-related contingencies

Forward forward deposits placed

Other commitments

Exchange rate contracts
Commodity-related derivative contracts

Total capital requirements for off-halance
sheet exposures

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
150,270 122,149
2,396,174 2,703,086
- 5

211 213
1,274,614 1,302,666
2,545,787 2,553,214
310,286 402,922
4,915 6,008
6,682,257 7,090,263
1 1

4,893 30,428
6,136 4,944

8 1

11,038 35,374

The capital requirement is made by multiplying the Company’s risk-weighted amount derived
from the relevant calculation approach by 8%. It does not reflect the Company's actual

regulatory capital.
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Citibank {Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Additional disclosures on risk management (continued)
Capital charge for operational risk

The capital charge for operational risk calculated in accordance with the standardized
(operational risk) approach at the statement of financial position date is:

2023 2022
$000 $’000
Capital charge for operational risk 851,692 830,245

Credit risk exposures

Credit ratings from Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services are
used for the exposures of Sovereign, Public sector entity ("PSE”), Multilateral development
bank, Bank, Securities firm, Corporate and Collective investment scheme (“CIS*). The
Company follows the process prescribed in Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the
ratings to the exposures booked in the Company’s banking book.
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(h)
(iv)

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Additional disclosures on risk management (continued)

Counterparty credit risk-related exposures

The Company engages in over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative fransactions that may result in
counterparty credit risk. The OTC derivative transactions include (1) embedded derivatives
of hybrid (combined) deposits fo customers and (2) stand-alone derivatives.

Embedded derivatives of hybrid (combined) deposits

Positioned as a single product, a hybrid (combined) deposit to customers generally consists
of two components: an embedded derivative and a host cash deposit. The host cash deposit
serves as a collateral over the terms of the transaction that fully mitigates the counterparty
credit risks associated with the embedded derivative.

Stand-alone derivatives fransactions

The Company participates in stand-alone derivative transactions predominately for managing
its own exposures as part of its asset and liability management process. The derivative
activities of this type are with group entities.

No internal capital for counterparty are considered necessary for the fully mitigated
transactions and transactions with group entities.

An analysis of major classes of exposures by counterparty type for 2023 is as follows:

Banks and

other financial
institutions Others Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
Notional amounts 17,851,036 - 17,851,036
Credit equivalent amounts 353,206 - 353,206
Risk-weighted amounts 76,791 - 78,791

An analysis of major classes of exposures by counterparty type for 2022 is as follows:

Banks and

other financial
institutions Others Total
$'000 $000 $'000
Notional amounts 15,959,628 - 15,859,628
Credit equivalent amounts 225,639 - 225,639
Risk-weighted amounts 61,811 - 61,811
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(h)

(v)

Citibank {Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Additional disclosures on risk management (continued)

There were no counterparty credit risk exposures to sovereigns, public sector entities and
corporates as at statement of financial position date.

Credit risk mitigation

Under the Banking (Capital) Rules, recognised netting is defined as any netting done
pursuant to a valid bilateral netting arrangement. Consistent with the Banking (Capital)
Rules, the Company only includes valid bilateral netting arrangements in the calculation of
credit risk mitigation for capital adequacy purpose.

For all facilities except instalment mortgages, non-revalving loan supported by recognised
guarantee and margin finance not hitting the required conditions, it is the Company’s policy
that they should be reviewed at least on an annual basis, with the collatera! (if any) being
revalued during the review. Where facilities have been overdue and are tangibly secured,
the collateral must be revalued at a minimum of once every month.

For mortgages, valuation on the mortgaged property must be updated at a minimum of once
every year through the consistent use of real estate price indices. When the market is
subject to significant changes in conditions, valuation should be updated more frequently.
For accounts past due over 120 days, an updated valuation through a panel surveyor on the
mortgaged property is required. An updated valuation must be obtained on an annual basis
or earlier if there is reason to believe that the value of the mortgaged property has declined.

For Global Margin Lending, all collateral is subject to daily marked-to-market revaluation
(excluding Saturday, Sunday and other Hong Kong Public holidays); and margin calls must
be initiated if the equity position has deteriorated to the margin trigger level. The frequency
of revaluation may be intensified under the volatile market scenario.

The main types of recognised collateral taken by the Company includes cash on deposit, real
estate properties, Equity shares, units or shares in collective investment schemes, Life
Insurance Policies and various recognised debt securities.

The credit and market risks concentrations within the recognised collateral and guarantees
used by the Company are considered to be immaterial.
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(vii)

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Additional disclosures on risk management (continued)

Market risk

The Company has adopted the Standardized Approach in the calculation of the market risk

capital charge.

2023 2022
$'000 $'000

Capital charge for:
- Foreign exchange exposure 4,500 45,687

Equity exposures
2023 2022
$°000 $°000

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit

or loss . 15,590 537,667

The investment in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and are periodically evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment. Note 1(d) details
the accounting policies as well as impairment valuation methodologies, assumptions and

practices for the equity investments.
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

(viii) Currency risk

(h) Additional disclosures on risk management (continued)

The net position in foreign currencies are disclosed when the individual currency constitutes
not less than 10% of the total net position in all foreign currencies:

Equivalent in HK$'000

Spot assets

Spot liabilities
Forward purchases
Forward sales

Net long non-structural position

Equivalent in HK$'000

Spot assets

Spot liabilities
Forward purchases
Forward sales

Net long non-structural position

There were no foreign currency structural positions as at the above reporting dates.
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2023
USD RMB
120,658,725 674,868
(108,578,280) (3,239,874)
1,510,410 3,433,404
(13,463,631) (838,560)
127,224 29,838
2022

UsD RMB
141,578,472 995,606
(129,964,641) (2,642,913)
2,334,133 2,721,087
(13,882,755) (515,127)
65,209 558,653
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Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Corporate governance

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. and falls under the Citigroup
corporate govemnance infrastructure. Under this structure, the Company is commitied to high
standards of corporate governance and its activities are monitored by the various committees
which Citigroup has in place in Hong Kong and globally. In addition, the Board has
established a number of specialised committees to assist in the Board’s oversight of certain
major functional areas. The Company has fully complied throughout the year with the
guideline in the Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally
[ncorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by the HKMA.

Board committees

The Company has a number of commitiees under the Board including the Audit Commitiee,
Risk Management Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the senior management of financial control,
internal audit and compliance and the external auditors to consider the nature and scope of
audit review and the effectiveness of the systems of internai control and compliance with
local regulations. The Committee also discusses matters raised by the external auditors and
ensures that all audit recommendations are implemented. The Committee comprises all
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Commitiee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility
relating to the establishment and operation of a risk management system, including
reviewing the adequacy of risk management practices for the material risks such as credit,
market, liquidity, legal, compliance, regulatory, conduct, operational and franchise and
reputational risks on a regular basis. The Committee is also mandated by the Board to
oversee the operation of the Credit Forum, Asset and Liability Committee and Information
Technology Management Forum.

The Committee comprises all Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee is the decision-making group that is responsible for
governing Liquidity Risk and Market Risk in the Non-Trading Book, and for monitoring and

influencing the balance sheet, investment securities and capital management activities for
the Company.
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Citihank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year ended 31 December 2023

Unaudited supplementary information (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollar unless otherwise indicated)

Corporate governance (continued)
Risk Management Committee (continued)
Asset and Liability Committee (continued)

The Risk Management Committee at its meeting held on November 22, 2023 approved the
integration of the Company's Asset & Liability Committee ("CHKL ALCO”) into the Hong
Kong Franchise Asset and Liability Committee (“HK ALCO") and the delegation of all duties
and responsibilities previously undertaken by the CHKL ALCO to the HK ALCO and that any
significant / issues identified by the HK ALCO should be reported to the Risk management
Committee on a timely basis. Such change took effect from reporting of Q1, 2024 matters.

Credit Forum

The Forum is a regular forum to identify, measure, manage credit risk and ensure business
strategies are operating within the risk appetite. The Forum also ensures the retail lending
activities are conducted in accordance to the requirements stipulated in the Company’s
policies and regulatory requirements.

Information Technology Management Forum

The Information Technology Management Forum has the overall information technology
governance responsibilities covering all technology related matters including the
establishment of a strategic information technology plan and provide guidance to the
execution of the strategic plan, as well as govemance and oversight of Technology risk
(including cyber security) in line with applicable Citi policy and procedures, prevalent and
applicable jurisdiction specific regulatory requirements around Technology (including Cyber
Security).

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is established to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, make recommendations on appointment or re-
appointment for directors and senior management, review the Board’s structure, size and
composition, review the efficiency and effectiveness of the functioning of the Board, oversee
senior management’s implementation of the remuneration system to ensure compliance with
applicable regulatory requirements and to assess whether the Company’s overall
remuneration policy is in line with its risk appetite, risk culture and long-term interests. The
Committee is also the dedicated board-level committee in advising the Board in discharging
its responsibilities for the Company’s culture-related matters. The Committee comprises all
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
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